
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Committee 
 
Meeting: Tuesday, 10th January 2017 at 6.00 pm in The Civic Suite, North 

Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP 
 
 

Membership: Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), Lugg, Hanman, Morgan, 
D. Brown, Dee, Hansdot, Toleman, J. Brown, Fearn, Finnegan and 
Walford 

Contact: Tony Wisdom 
Democratic Services Officer 
01452 396158 
anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or non-
pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please 
see Agenda Notes. 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2016. 

4.   LATE MATERIAL  
 
Please note that any late material relating to the applications detailed below will be published 
on the Council’s website as a supplement in the late afternoon of the day of the meeting. 

5.   LIDL SUPERMARKET, CANADA WHARF, BRISTOL ROAD - 16/00840/FUL (Pages 
13 - 36) 
 
Application for determination:- 
 
16/00840/FUL - Demolition of existing Lidl foodstore and construction of larger replacement 
store with associated car parking, servicing and landscaping at Lidl Supermarket, Canada 
Wharf, Bristol Road. 

6.   PROPOSED LOCAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER - 16/01510/LDO  
 
Proposed Local Development Order for adoption:- :  
 
A Residential Led Draft Local Development Order that when adopted would grant planning 
permission for predominantly residential uses with other supporting uses and car parking, and 



 

2 
 

that includes an Environmental Statement 
 
Location: Quayside and Blackfriars Area , Including the Area to the North West of the 
Magistrates Court and Police Station ( Quayside) and Land South East of the Magistrates 
Court up to Ladybellegate Street   (Blackfriars) . 
 
 
Please note: As responses from certain statutory consultees are awaited the report will 
follow. 

7.   DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 37 - 54) 
 
To consider a schedule of applications determined under delegated powers during the month 
of November 2016. 

8.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday, 7 February 2017 at 6.00pm. 

 
 
 

 
Jon McGinty 
Managing Director 
 
Date of Publication: Monday, 2 January 2017 
 
 



 

3 
 

NOTES 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member 
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows – 
 

Interest 
 

Prescribed description 
 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months 
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a 
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil 
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest) 
and the Council 
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or works are 

to be executed; and 
(b)   which has not been fully discharged 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area. 
 

For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or 
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your 
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a 
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
Council’s area for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
 

(a)   the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner 

or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has 
a beneficial interest 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where – 
 

(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land 
in the Council’s area and 

(b)   either – 
i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 

or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 

ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with 



 

4 
 

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 

For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture 
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme 
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
and other securities of any description, other than money 
deposited with a building society. 
 

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest. 

 

Access to Information 
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date. 
 

For further details and enquiries about this meeting please contact Anthony Wisdom, 
01452 396158, anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

For general enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this 
information, or if you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information 
please call 01452 396396. 
 

Recording of meetings 
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those 
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy, 
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.  
 

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, 
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed.  The use of flash photography and/or 
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council 
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:  
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the 

assembly point in the car park and await further instructions; 
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is 

safe to do so. 

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/
mailto:anthony.wisdom@gloucester.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


 

5 
 

Copyright Notice for viewing documents via Public 
Access 

 
Planning application information submitted to the Council is protected by the Copyright Acts 
(Section 47, 1988 Act). You may only use material which is downloaded and/or printed for 
consultation purposes, to compare current applications with previous schemes and to check 
whether developments have been completed in accordance with approved plans. Further 
copies must not be made without the prior permission of the copyright owner. If you link to 
Public Access you have acknowledged that you have read, understood and agree to the 
copyright and other limitations. 
 
Gloucester City Council reserve the right to remove or not display certain planning 
application information for the confidentiality or other reasons. 

 
 
 

 
HUMAN RIGHTS 

 
In compiling the recommendations on the following reports we have given full consideration 
to all aspects of the Human Rights Act 1998 in relation to the applicant and/or the occupiers 
of any affected properties. In particular, regard has been had to Article 8 of the ECHR 
(Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence); Article 1 of the First 
Protocol (Right to the use and enjoyment of property) and the requirement to ensure that 
any interference with the right in this Article is both in accordance with the law and 
proportionate. A balance needs to be drawn between the right to develop land in 
accordance with planning permission and the rights under Article 8 and also Article 1 of the 
First Protocol of adjacent occupiers. On assessing the issues raised by the applications no 
particular matters, other than those referred to in the reports, warrant any different action to 
that recommended.  
 

 
 
 

 
EQUALITY ACT 2010 

 
In considering this matter, full consideration has been given to the need to comply with the 
Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular to the obligation to 
not only take steps to stop discrimination, but also to the promotion of equality, including the 
promotion of equality of opportunity and the promotion of good relations.  An equality 
impact assessment has been carried out and it is considered that the Council has fully 
complied with the legal requirements. 
 

 
 





1 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING : Tuesday, 6th December 2016 

   

PRESENT : Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), Lugg, Hanman, Morgan, 
D. Brown, Dee, Hansdot, Toleman, J. Brown, Fearn and Finnegan 
 
Officers in Attendance 
Mella McMahon Development Control Manager 
Nick Jonathan, Solicitor, One Legal 
Adam Smith, Principal Planning Officer, Major Developments 
Caroline Townley, Principal Planning Officer 
Tony Wisdom, Democratic Services Officer 
 
 

APOLOGIES : Cllr. Walford 
 
 

 
 

78. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Toleman declared a personal interest in agenda item 7, Llanthony Wharf 
as a trustee of the Lllanthony Secunda Priory Trust. 
 

79. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2016 were confirmed and signed 
by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

80. LATE MATERIAL  
 
There was no late material in respect of the agenda items.  
 

81. APPLICATION TO POLLARD A PROTECTED BEECH TREE AT 29, 
TEWKESBURY ROAD  
 
The Chair advised that this application had been deferred at the applicant’s request. 
 

82. UNIT 1, MAGNET RETAIL PARK, EASTERN AVENUE - 16/00996/FUL  & 
16/01011/FUL  
 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
06.12.16 

 

2 

The Principal Planning Officer presented her report which detailed two applications 
at Unit 1, Magnet retail Park, Eastern Avenue. 
 
16/00996/FUL - Variation of condition 9 on planning permission 98/00353/FUL to 
allow for the sale of toys, children’s sports goods and equipment, bicycles and 
associated equipment, play equipment, baby equipment and products, electronic 
games and equipment and other products associated with toys and children’s 
entertainment. 
 
16/01011/FUL  -   Extension of existing mezzanine for the installation of 214.3 
square metres of floor space at mezzanine level. 
 
The Vice-Chair was advised that the application was not personal to the applicant 
but was specific in the nature of goods to be sold. He believed that the application 
was an indication of how well the City was doing and he was happy to support the 
extension of the mezzanine floorspace.  
 
Another Member agreed with the Vice-Chair but questioned the period of  five years 
stated in proposed Condition 1. He was advised that the current standard period for 
such conditions was now three years. Members indicated that they would support 
the amendment of Condition 1 in both applications to refer to a period of three 
years. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 

a) 16/00996/FUL  
 

Planning permission be granted subject to the conditions in the report 
with condition 1 being amended to refer to a period of three years. 

 
b) 16/01011/FUL 

 
Planning permission be granted subject to the conditions in the report 
with condition 1 being amended to refer to a period of three years. 

  
 

83. LLANTHONY WHARF, ST ANN WAY (GLOUCESTER QUAYS) - 16/00643/FUL  
 
Councillor Toleman had declared a personal interest in agenda item 7, Llanthony 
Wharf as a trustee of the Lllanthony Secunda Priory Trust and took no part in the 
voting on this application. 
 
 
The Principal Planning Officer presented his report which detailed an application for 
the erection of assisted living extra care accommodation (55 units) (use class C2) 
and 28 retirement apartments (category II type) (use class C3), access, car parking 
and landscaping at Llanthony Wharf, St Ann Way (Gloucester Quays). 
 
He reported that the Canal and River Trust had indicated that the sum of £93,000 
would cover the cost of surfacing an area of towpath of 168 x 2.5 metres which in 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
06.12.16 

 

3 

his opinion would be sufficient to reach the area facing the College site which had 
been surfaced to a high standard and would create consistency along the towpath. 
 
He also clarified that the Officer recommendation included securing a clause in the 
S.106 agreement for the developer to make a meaningful start on the development 
within a limited period, otherwise the viability of the scheme to support policy 
compliant contributions would be reviewed. 
 
The viability appraisal had indicated that the sum of £124,000 would be affordable 
and the forty percent affordable housing requirement would not be achievable in 
this case. 
 
Lisa Matthewson, agent for the applicant, addressed the Committee in 
support of the application. 
 
Ms Matthewson stated that the application had been developed in conjunction with 
Council Officers. The site was subject to many constraints which had probably 
prevented previous development. 
 
She stated that application, complied with local and national policies, would provide 
much needed housing for the elderly and would bring economic benefits, provide 
employment and would provide £124,000 for towpath improvements and other 
benefits. 
 
The Vice-Chair welcomed the application which he believed was in keeping and he 
particularly liked the proposed slope to the Priory. He believed that the majority of 
S.106 funding should be applied to the towpath and the remainder applied to 
affordable housing. He believed the scheme to be well thought out and would bring 
people to the City Centre and the Quays. 
 
The Chair supported the improvements to the towpath which see the completion of 
another part of the Quays. 
 
Another Member believed that any balance should be allocated for affordable 
housing and he questioned the provision of parking. He asked that it be looked at 
again and noted that there was no provision for dedicated disabled parking. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer stated that the applicant had experience of 
developing many other sites and their analysis had been supported by the Highway 
Authority. He believed that the applicant may be willing to designate some spaces 
for disabled use. 
 
The Chair suggested that the Officer discussed designation of disabled spaces with 
the applicant, but was not convinced about reviewing the number of spaces. 
 
Another Member asked that particular attention be given to dealing with the sharp 
crossings in the railway turnouts that presented a hazard to pedestrians and 
cyclists. 
 
A Member questioned pedestrian access to the towpath from the development and 
suggested that benches be installed. 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
06.12.16 

 

4 

 
The Chair suggested that the benches could be an appropriate use for the Ward 
Members’ allocation. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer advised that pedestrian access to the land to the 
north of the canalside block had been provided for but a complete link out to the 
towpath was reliant on crossing land in the ownership of Peel Holdings.  
 
The Vice-Chair suggested routing a path around the common area and was 
advised that such a route would be very close to a ground floor residential unit.  
 
The Solicitor requested that the Officer’s recommendation be amended by deleting 
the words ”and to delegate to the solicitor” in the final sentence as the Council no 
longer directly employed a solicitor as legal services were provided by One Legal. 
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the receipt of plans 
showing allocation of a suitable number of parking bays for disabled persons, the 
conditions in the report (With Condition 1 to be amended to reflect a timescale for 
commencement to relate properly to the ‘meaningful commencement of 
development clause set out in the Section 106 legal agreement) and the 
satisfactory completion of a section 106 legal agreement (to a total cost of 
£124,209) of a composition to be agreed following consultation with the Chair and 
Vice-Chair and to include funds for the implementation of improvement works to the 
surface of the towpath in the vicinity of the application site including the retention of 
railway tracks and any balance of funds to be secured for affordable housing 
projects and the incorporation of such additional provisions in the planning 
obligation that may be deemed necessary by the Solicitor..  
 

84. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
Consideration was given to a schedule of applications determined under delegated 
powers during the month of October 2016. 
 
A Member asked if works had started on application 16/00361/CONDIT. The 
Development Control Manager undertook to inform the Member of the current 
position. 
 
The Chair requested that members having any queries regarding the delegated 
Decisions raised them by e-mail in the first instance as it was likely that the Case 
Officer would not be in attendance at Committee meetings. 
 
RESOLVED that the schedule be noted. 
 

85. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday, 10, January 2017 at 6.00pm. 
 
 

Time of commencement:  6.30 pm  
Time of conclusion:  7.30 pm  

Chair 



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
06.12.16 

 

5 

 
 





 

PT 

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL 
 
COMMITTEE : PLANNING 
 
DATE : 6TH DECEMBER 2016 
 
ADDRESS/LOCATION : LIDL SUPERMARKET, CANADA WHARF, 

BRISTOL ROAD. 
 
APPLICATION NO. & WARD : 16/00840/FUL  
   MORELAND 
 
EXPIRY DATE : 13TH JANUARY 2017 (TIME EXTENSION 

AGREED) 
 
APPLICANT : LIDL UK GmbH 
 
PROPOSAL : DEMOLITION OF EXISTING LIDL 

FOODSTORE AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
LARGER REPLACEMENT STORE WITH 
ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING, SERVICING 
AND LANDCAPING. 

 
REPORT BY : CAROLINE TOWNLEY 
 
NO. OF APPENDICES/ : 1. SITE LOCATION PLAN 
OBJECTIONS  
 
 
1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL 
 
1.1  The application site is located on the western side of Bristol Road at the 

junction of Bristol Road and Tuffley Avenue approximately 1 kilometre south 
west from the City centre. The site contains two buildings one operating as 
Lidl (unit 1) and the adjoining unit occupied by Bargain Base. The site is 
bounded to the north and south by commercial uses, to the west by the 
Gloucester and Sharpness Canal and to the east by Bristol Road and a 
mixture of commercial and residential uses. 

 
1.2 The existing building is located in the north western corner of the site and is 

set back from Bristol Road behind an area of car parking which also extends 
along the southern side of the building. The existing Lidl store has a gross 
internal floor area of 1290 square metres the adjacent unit has a gross 
internal floorspace of 784 square metres. A total of 135 car parking spaces 
are currently provided on the site with vehicular access from Bristol Road. 
 

1.3 The existing development was completed in 1995 comprising two retail units 
with Lidl occupying the larger unit. The planning permission (1106708/DMP) 
prohibited the sub-division or amalgamation of the two units without the 
consent of the Council (condition 5) and restricted the range of goods that 



 

PT 

may be sold to food and drink for consumption off the premises, carpets, 
furniture, sporting and electrical goods, DIY products and products for the 
maintenance and improvement of houses, gardens and motor vehicles 
(condition 6). 

 
1.4 The proposed development comprises the demolition of the existing units and 

construction of a new Lidl store and associated car parking and servicing 
area. The proposed replacement store would be sited on the north western 
part of the site in the same general position as the existing store. The store 
will be served by 120 car parking spaces, of which 8 will be for disabled 
customers and 4 parent and child spaces located close to the store entrance. 
Vehicular access will be via the existing junction off Bristol Road. 

 
1.5 The proposed building is largely single storey, with a partial mezzanine and a 

mono pitch roof with a ridge height of 7.6 metres. The shallow pitch roof falls to a 

height of 5.28 metres. The gross internal floor area of the retail unit is 2,418 
square metres, which is subdivided into four main parts, a sales area of 1,424 
square metres, an internal bakery of 83.4 square metres, a warehouse 
storage area of 415 square metres, and a mezzanine welfare area of 186.4 
square metres. 
 

1.6 The customer entrance is located in the south eastern corner of the building, 
with the entrance lobby being angled across the corner so that it relates to 
both the main car park and the pedestrian access from Bristol Road. A glazed 
shopfront extends from the customer entrance across the full width of the 
northern façade of the store fronting onto Bristol Road. 

 
2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
2.1 Planning permission was granted for the erection of two retail stores with 

associated parking and construction of vehicular access and service areas in 
1994 (ref. 11/0607/08). 

 
2.2 An application to vary condition 6 on the original planning permission 

restricting the sale of goods was refused by the City Council on 11th 
December 1995 (ref. 95/00554/FUL). The variation was, however, 
subsequently allowed on appeal to include the sale of clothing and footwear 
from the smaller unit only. 

 
2.3 An application for the subdivision of the smaller retail unit into two was 

allowed on appeal in 1997 (ref. 96/00527/FUL and T/APP/U1620/A/96/ 
273613/P9). 

 
2.4 An application was submitted in 2012 for the amalgamation of units 2 & 3 and 

construction of a rear warehouse extension of 278 sq. m, new shopfront 
glazing and variation of condition 6 of 11067/08 (with respect to units 2 and 3) 
to include pets and pet supplies, office equipment, toys and games, travel 
goods, children and infant goods, leisure goods, bicycle and bicycle 
accessories and toiletries and health and beauty products. The application 
was refused in June 2013 for the following reason: 



 

PT 

 “The applicant has failed to satisfy the requirements of the sequential 
assessment set down within the NPPF and national retail policy guidance by 
failing to demonstrate that there are no other sites that are available in the 
centre or in sites that are in a more accessible location to the city centre, than 
the application site. The application is therefore contrary to the provisions of 
the NPPF, Planning for Town Centres Practice Guide and Policy S4a of the 
City of Gloucester Local Plan Second Deposit 2002.” 

 
3.0 PLANNING POLICIES 
 
3.1 The statutory development plan for Gloucester remains the 1983 City of 

Gloucester Local Plan. Regard is also had to the policies contained within the 
2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan which was subject to two 
comprehensive periods of public consultation and adopted by the Council for 
development control purposes. The National Planning Policy Framework has 
been published and is also a material consideration.   

 
3.2 For the purposes of making decisions, the National Planning Policy 

Framework sets out that, policies in a Local Plan should not be considered out 
of date where they were adopted prior to the publication of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. In these circumstances due weight should be 
given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of 
consistency with the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
3.2 The policies within the 1983 and the 2002 Local Plan remain therefore a 

material consideration where they are consistent with the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 

3.3 The 1983 Local Plan policy most relevant to the proposals is Policy S.1(a): 
‘Major comparison shopping facilities will not normally be permitted outside 
the main shopping area, defined on Plan 10, other than in accordance with the 
specific provisions of other policies.’ This policy is, however, considered to be 
out of date and superseded by national planning policy. 
  

3.4 From the Second Stage Deposit Plan the following policy is the most relevant: 
 
 Policy S.4a (New Retail Developments outside of Designated Centres) 
 Policy FRP.1a (Development and Flood Risk) 

 Policy FRP.9 (Light Pollution) 
Policy FRP.10 (Noise) 
Policy FRP.15 (Contaminated Land) 
Policy BE.1 (Scale Massing and Height) 
Policy BE.6 (Access for All) 
Policy BE.13 (Landscape Schemes) 
Policy BE.21 (Safeguarding of Amenity) 
Policy BE.31 (Preserving Sites of Archaeological Interest) 
Policy BE.36 (Archaeology Preservation in Situ) 
Policy BE.37 (Recording and Preserving Archaeology) 
Policy BE.38 (Meeting the Costs) 
Policy TR.9 (Parking Standards) 



 

PT 

Policy TR.12 (Cycle Standards) 
TR.31 (Road Safety) 

 
3.5 In terms of the emerging local plan, the Council has prepared a Joint Core 

Strategy with Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Councils which was submitted to 
the Planning Inspectorate on 20th November 2014.  Policies in the Submission 
Joint Core Strategy have been prepared in the context of the NPPF and 
NPPG and are a material consideration.  The weight to be attached to them is 
limited; the Plan has not yet been the subject of independent scrutiny and 
does not have development plan status. The Examination in Public has been 
ongoing since May 2015. In addition to the Joint Core Strategy, the Council is 
preparing its local City Plan which is taking forward the policy framework 
contained within the City Council’s Local Development Framework Documents 
which reached Preferred Options stage in 2006. 

 
3.6  On adoption, the Joint Core Strategy, City Plan and any Neighbourhood Plans 

will provide a revised planning policy framework for the Council. In the interim 
period, weight can be attached to relevant policies in the emerging plans 
according to 

 
1. The stage of preparation of the emerging plan 
2. The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies; 

and 
3. The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to 

the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
3.7 All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address: - Gloucester Local 

Plan policies – www.gloucester.gov.uk/planning; and Department of 
Community and Local Government planning policies - 
www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planning/. 

 
4.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
4.1 Gloucestershire County Council (Highways) – No highway objection 

subject to the inclusion of conditions.  
 

4.2 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) – The LLFA is satisfied that the 
outstanding issues of concern relating to the design/layout of the attenuation 
system, peak flow controls, future maintenance requirements and water 
quality controls have now been addressed satisfactorily.  

 
4.2 DPDS Consulting – Provided retail policy advice to the Council on the 

application. This advice has informed the Officer’s Opinion set out in Section 6 
of this report. 

 
4.3 Severn Trent Water – No objection to the proposal subject to the inclusion of 

a condition requiring the submission and approval of plans for the disposal of 
surface water and foul sewage together with a note advising that there might 
be a public sewer within the application site. 

 

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/planning
http://www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planning/


 

PT 

4.4 Worcestershire Regulatory Services (Contaminated Land advisors) – 
The history of the site suggests that contamination issues may potentially be a 
significant issue. As a result, in order that the site is suitable for its proposed 
use and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, 
conditions are recommended for inclusion on any permission. 

  
 The NPPF advises that planning decisions should ensure the site is suitable 

for its purpose taking account ground conditions, pollution arising from 
previous uses and any proposals for mitigation including land remediation. 
The Framework also requires adequate site investigation information 
prepared by a competent person is presented. Little information is known or 
has been provided on this site and consequently a Phase 1 study is 
recommended. 

 
 Records and information submitted with the application indicate that 

contamination may be a significant issue at the site due to the former use of 
the site as “dockyards and docklands”. Currently no risk assessment relating 
to potential contamination has been submitted. 

 
4.5 Canal and River Trust – The visual and ecological impact of the proposal on 

the Gloucester & Sharpness Canal should be minimised. In order to achieve 
this, the existing close boarded fence at the rear of the property should be 
retained, or replaced with a similar fence. 

 
 In order to minimise impact on wildlife which uses the canal for foraging no 

additional lighting columns should be provided at the rear of the property. All 
lighting at the rear of the site should be hooded to minimise light spill. 

 
 There is an existing surface water outfall from the site into the Canal at the 

rear. The applicant is advised that this may need a revised agreement with 
the Canal and River Trust as a result of the development. 

 
4.5 Environmental Health Officer – No objection raised subject to the inclusion 

of conditions. 
 
4.6 City Archaeologist – The desk-based assessment submitted by the 

applicant in support of the application concludes that there is potential for 
archaeological remains to survive below ground within the site. In particular 
remains of Roman date and remains associated with the former timber yard 
are anticipated. The City Archaeologist agrees with this assessment and is 
concerned that the proposed development may damage or destroy significant 
heritage assets. In light of this it is recommended that conditions be attached 
to any planning permission. The recommended conditions will provide for a 
programme of archaeological evaluation (trial trenching) to be undertaken in 
advance of development. Should significant heritage assets be identified then 
further mitigation may be required either prior to, or during, the development. 
That mitigation would take the form either of a watching brief or an 
excavation. A condition is also advised requiring the provision of historic 
interpretation outlining the history of the site. 

 



 

PT 

5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS 
 
5.1 The application has been publicised through a press notice and the display of 

a site notice. In addition 27 properties have been notified of the application in 
writing.  
 

5.2 As a result of this publicity one letter of representation has been received from 
Planning Potential on behalf of Aldi Stores Limited objecting to the application 
and raising serious concerns with regard to the approach that has been taken 
with the application. In particular the objection raises the following key issues 
that the Council should consider when determining the application: 
 

 Consistency of approach with regard to the Council’s determination of 
other applications in the local area and other applications by Lidl at this 
site. 

 The requirements of the NPPF and Planning Practice Guide. 

 The significance of recent case law with regard to the application of the 
sequential test. 

 
The letter concludes that the submitted application is deficient in the following 
respects and in the absence of the required information being provided the 
application should be refused: 
 

 The requirements of the NPPF and PPG have not been met in terms of 
demonstrating compliance with the sequential approach and retail 
impact tests; 

 Recent case law emphasises that the sequential approach must be 
undertaken on the basis of the floorspace proposed and not the 
applicant proposing it; and 

 The application raises material retail policy issues that Lidl raised with 
the Council in 2013 and that are not addressed adequately in their 
application submission. 

 
5.4 The full content of all correspondence on this application can be inspected at 

Herbert Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, or via the following link, prior to 
the Committee meeting: 

 
http://planningdocs.gloucester.gov.uk/default.aspx?custref=16/00840/FUL 

 
6.0 OFFICER OPINION 
 
6.1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides 

that where regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. 
 
Retail Assessment 

6.2 The application proposes to demolish the existing Lidl store together with the 
adjoining retail unit and replace them with a new and enlarged store for Lidl. 

http://planningdocs.gloucester.gov.uk/default.aspx?custref=16/00840/FUL


 

PT 

The existing store Lidl store on the site has a gross internal floorspace of 1290 
sq. m. The adjoining unit has a gross internal floorspace of 784 sq. m and was 
most recently occupied by Bargain Base. The total combined retail floorspace 
to be demolished is 2,074 sq. m gross with a net sales area of 1,725 sq. m. 
The proposed replacement store would have a gross external floorspace of 
2,583 sq. m with a net sales floorspace of 1,424 sq. m. The proposed 
redevelopment of the site would therefore result in an increase in the total 
gross floor area of 509 sq. m with an overall decrease in the total net sales 
area of some 301 sq. m. 
 

6.3 Given the proposal involves retail which is defined as a main town centre use 
by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and in an out-of-centre 
location, it will need to satisfy the requirements of both the sequential test and 
the impact test (NPPF paragraphs 24 to 27).   Given the nature of such retail 
considerations and the detailed analysis that becomes necessary, the Council 
commissioned a retail consultant, DPDS Consulting, to advise on the 
application. 

 
6.4 The current application is supported by a Retail Statement together with two 

additional Supplementary Notes on Planning Policy Matters, prepared by 
Bilfinger GVA (BGVA), submitted to respond to Officer’s requests for additional 
information. 

 
Sequential Test 

6.5 The sequential test requires ‘town centre uses’ to be located in town centres, 
then in edge of centre locations, and only if suitable sites are not available 
should out of centre sites be considered. It follows that when considering edge 
and out of centre proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites 
that are well connected to the town centre, (Section 2 – Ensuring the vitality of 
town centres, paragraphs 24-27 in the NPPF). 

 
6.6 From a sequential test perspective, it is relevant that there is already an 

existing Lidl store trading onsite and it is accepted that it would not be 
reasonable to expect Lidl to split its offer between sites. Officers did, however, 
advise that given the store occupies an out-of-centre location it was necessary 
for Lidl to consider the availability of sites to accommodate the larger store on 
a more sequentially preferable site. The originally submitted Retail Statement 
was written before the Mansfield judgement (Aldergate Properties vs Mansfield 
District Council and Regal Sherwood Oaks Ltd (2016) EWHC 1670). This 
clarified that suitability in the sequential test was the suitability of the site for 
the broad type of development proposed and not the individual retailer. This 
clarification is of fundamental importance to the way the sequential test is 
carried out. It is also clear from this judgement that the sequential test applies 
to extensions and it must also apply to this type of development. 
 

6.7 The originally submitted report also pre-dates the recent Secretary of State 
decision in Exeter. In this decision, the Secretary of State  agreed that a site 
could not accommodate the same configuration of floorspace was an 
acceptable alternative within the sequential test and that it would be 
unreasonable to insist on the same degree of car parking on town centre sites, 



 

PT 

This gives one of the few indications of how much flexibility should be 
expected. 
 

6.8  DPDS advised that the business model approach to the sequential test 
originally put forward by the applicants conflicts with the Mansfield judgement 
and there is a need to consider sites in and on the edge of centres (or well 
connected to those centres) which are suitable for the broad type of retailer, 
not just acceptable to Lidl. 
 

6.9 The Further Supplementary Note on Sequential Assessment (dated 25th 
November 2016) submitted by the applicant provides additional information in 
relation to the sequential test and specifically addressed whether there were 
any suitable and/or available sites within, or on the edge of, the City centre, 
Quedgeley District Centre and Abbeymead District Centre. Opportunities in 
retail parks closer to and better connected to the City centre than the 
application site have also been considered.  
 

6.10 In the City centre, Kings Quarter, Blackfriars and the former BHS store have 
been considered. It is agreed that Kings Quarter and Blackfriars are not 
available within the appropriate timescale for the application proposal. The 
BHS unit does have adjacent car parking via a lift and while Lidl might not find 
this acceptable, this is a matter for commercial judgement. However, use of 
this unit would require two level trading and DPDS agree that this is impractical 
for a food retailer. 
 

6.11 There are no available units in either the St Oswald’s or Westgate Retail 
Parks. The proposed cinema redevelopment at the Peel Centre includes a 
food store but of insufficient size even allowing for some flexibility. 
 

6.12 There are no opportunities at Quedgeley District Centre. It is accepted that the 
former Ridge and Furrow site adjacent to the Abbeymead District Centre is too 
small to accommodate the proposed development even allowing for flexibility 
in terms of parking provision. 
 

6.13 Previously submitted assessments concluded that there were no suitable 
available units within the Seymour Road Local Centre. The Note concludes 
that there are no suitable or available sites either within or adjacent to these 
centres within a similar timescale to the proposal. 

 
Retail Impact Assessment 

6.14 The NPPF states that impact assessments should be required for retail 
developments over 2,500 sq m or any local threshold for out-of-centre retail 
developments that are not allocated in a local plan. The Practice Guidance 
(PG) clarifies that this refers to “the gross retail floorspace defined as the total 
built floor area measured externally which is occupied exclusively by a retailer 
or retailers, excluding open areas used for the storage, display or sale of 
goods”. There is no indication that the 2,500 sq m threshold is a net increase 
in floorspace and DPDS conclude that a retail assessment is required. 
However, it is reasonable that this should be proportional to the likely increase 
in turnover. 



 

PT 

 
6.15 The applicant’s planning consultant (BGVA) has now supplied some broad 

data on the likely uplift in turnover resulting from the redevelopment which 
DPDS consider to be reasonable. BGVA has indicated that it expects most of 
the turnover to be derived from the other discount food stores in the area, and 
that only one of these is in a defined centre.  
 

6.16 DPDS does not accept that the additional floorspace is likely to be drawn 
almost exclusively from other food discounters. It is agreed that the Aldi on 
Clifton Road would be the most affected, but the increase in market share of 
the food discounters is mostly at the expense of the main supermarket 
companies and the desire to increase the size of stores to compete more 
directly with the big food stores. DPDS has indicated that it would expect a 
substantial part of the additional turnover to be drawn from the large 
supermarkets. However, these are mostly out of centre and not protected by 
planning policy. The main large store affected is likely to be Tesco in 
Quedgeley, which is located in a District Centre, but this is a large and 
successful store and DPDS do not expect the impact to be significant on either 
the store itself, or Quedgeley District Centre as a whole. 

 
6.17 The applicant has not considered the impact on the Seymour Road centre. 

This is the nearest centre to the proposal and the likely impact was considered 
by DPDS in some detail in relation to the Aldi at Clifton Road when it was 
concluded that the centre might lose turnover of some £0.3 million, but also 
that the impact would not be sufficient to justify a refusal of planning 
permission. In relation to this point DPDS advise that it is not introducing new 
competition into the area and that any cumulative impact (with the Aldi) would 
be mitigated through the impact on Aldi. It is therefore concluded that the likely 
impact from this much smaller addition to local floorspace would not be 
sufficient to justify a refusal of planning permission. 
 

6.18 The re-development of the site would result in the loss of some existing “bulky 
goods” floorspace. The applicants have made no allowance for this in its retail 
assessment. Although restricted to bulky sales, such goods comprise a 
significant proportion of the city centre turnover and the centre would stand to 
benefit from any turnover “released” from the loss of this comparison goods 
floorspace. DPDS consider that this is a material, if minor, consideration in 
favour of the proposal. 

 
Retail Policy Conclusion 

6.19 The latest Supplementary Note (25th November 2016) prepared by the 
applicants consultant demonstrates that there are no suitable sequentially 
preferable sites available and that the sequential test is passed. It is also 
accepted that the proposal would not have a significant adverse impact on any 
centre. 
 

6.20 On this basis there are no outstanding retail planning policy objections to the 
application. This conclusion is, however, dependent on the impact being 
assessed as a limited assortment discount food store and DPDS recommend 



 

PT 

the inclusion of conditions to limit the operation of the store to this type of 
retailing. 

 
Siting and Design of the Building 

6.21 The replacement store would be sited on the north western part of the site with 
car parking to the east and south of the building. The proposed service area is 
located to the rear of the store adjacent to the western boundary. The 
customer entrance would be located in the south eastern corner of the 
building, with the entrance lobby being angled across the corner so that it 
relates to both the main car park and the pedestrian access from Bristol Road. 
A glazed shopfront extends from the customer entrance across the full width of 
the northern façade of the store fronting onto Bristol Road. 
 

6.22 The originally submitted plans proposed the use of through coloured rendering 
with contrasting piers. Below eaves level is an area of silver grey horizontal 
external cladding. The glazing frames and entrance screens will be finished on 
graphite grey colour coated aluminium with external doors finished in grey. 
 

6.23 Amended plans have since been submitted which have introduced additional 
windows at first floor together with the introduction of grey piers to the southern 
elevation. The piers are 100 mm in depth and tie in with the cladding at the top 
of the elevation. The Urban Design Officer has confirmed that the proposed 
changes to the elevations are considered to be an improvement and 
acceptable in design terms.  
 

6.24 Amended landscaping plans have also been received introducing additional 
tree planting both within the car parking area and on the street frontage to 
provide a landscape structure to Bristol Road. The Landscape Officer has 
confirmed that the revised plans are acceptable. 

 
Residential Amenity 

6.25 The proposed store is adjacent to existing commercial uses to the north and 
south with the Gloucester and Sharpness Canal to the west. The closest 
residential properties are the terrace of two storey houses located to the east 
of the site on the opposite side of Bristol Road together with those located in 
Midsummer Walk on the opposite side of the canal. 
 

6.26 The application site is currently occupied by two retail units one of which is Lidl 
with associated car parking and servicing. The new store, delivery point and 
loading bays will be sited in a similar position to that of the existing store. The 
delivery and unloading area is located adjacent to the western site boundary 
and will comprise a single enclosed dock leveller. All unloading activities will 
occur within the vehicle or within the building and there will be no external 
unloading activity. Deliveries will be way of HGV with a normal schedule of one 
delivery per day but increasing to two deliveries per day for the busiest times 
of the year including Christmas and Easter. 
 

6.27 The external plant will be located within a dedicated plant area on a flat roof 
area above the loading bay on the western side of the building. The plant is 
expected to be operational 24 hours a day. 



 

PT 

 
6.28 A noise report was submitted in support of the application to assess impact of 

the proposed new plant and delivery noise on the occupiers of the closest 
dwellings. It is noted that there is existing noise impact from neighbouring 
uses. Overall it is concluded that the noise emissions from the store will be 
similar to those that are currently generated by the existing store. The layout of 
the proposed new store is very similar to that of the existing building with the 
delivery area adjacent to the canal. Given this arrangement the report 
concludes that it is not expected that there would be any significant change in 
the noise climate at the closest residential properties attributable to the 
proposed new store. 
 

6.29 The survey work undertaken has determined the general ambient noise 
climate at the site and the lowest daytime and night time background sound 
levels at the nearest dwellings. The noise report notes that there is existing 
noise impact from the neighbouring commercial premises which include a 
timber yard and a steel stockholder warehouse. Noise emissions from plant 
and deliveries already occur from the existing store. The assessment indicates 
that the noise rating levels at the nearest dwellings for plant and delivery noise 
would both fall into the category of ‘low impact’ and that the proposed 
development will not have any significant noise impact on residents of the 
surrounding houses. 
 

6.30 The Noise Assessment has been reviewed by the Environmental Health 
Officer who is satisfied that, subject to the inclusion of conditions, there will be 
no significant noise impact from the use of the car park, service yard or 
mechanical services equipment and overall there would be no demonstrable 
harm to the amenities currently enjoyed by the occupiers of the neighbouring 
houses. 
 

6.31 Given the distances between the development and closest dwellings, the 
design and overall height of the proposed building it is not considered that the 
proposal will result in any undue impact in terms of, overlooking, overbearing 
or overshadowing. 
 

6.32 All waste is stored and handled internally and there will be no external 
compactor or cardboard container. On this basis there should be no increase 
in vermin associated with the storage of external waste. A condition is 
recommended requiring details to be submitted and approved to prevent the 
nesting of seagulls on the roof of the building. 

 
Parking and Highway Issues 

6.33 The application site is adjacent to Bristol Road, a Class 3 Highway. Bristol 
Road features 2-way vehicle working with both pedestrian facilities on the site 
frontage and to the south east parallel with the vehicular access. The nearest 
pedestrian crossing facility is approximately 30 metres to the east at the 
junction of Bristol Road and Tuffley Avenue. Bristol Road is subject to a 30mph 
speed limit. 

 
 



 

PT 

Access 
6.34 Vehicular access to the site would utilise the existing means of access which is 

formed by way of a signal controlled junction. The vehicular access is suitable 
for the type and nature of traffic expected to enter the site. 
 

6.35 Existing pedestrian access is provided to the south east of the discount food 
store and links with the existing footway onto Bristol Road. The footway will be 
extended into the site to minimise the distance for pedestrians to cross. 
Pedestrian crossings are provided in the car park displaying a delineated route 
ensuring safe movements for pedestrians within the internal carriageway of the 
site. 

 
Parking 

6.36 The proposed development will result in a reduction of car parking provision 
from 135 to 122 spaces of which 8 will be disabled and 4 parent and child 
spaces. 
 

6.37  Although local car parking standards have been superseded by the NPPF, 
and therefore carry very little weight; the Highway Authority has used the local 
standards as a guide. The local car parking standards recommend that an A1 
retail use should provide 1 space per 18 sq m gross floor area for a food store 
over 1000 sq m in size. Using these standards the size of the proposed new 
store would require 79 spaces. On this basis the Highway Authority is 
satisfied that the application provides suitable car parking provision. The site 
is also conveniently located to high quality public transport facilities which can 
provide an alternative mode of transport.  
 

6.38  The disabled parking provision and family parking spaces are conveniently 
located close to pedestrian entrances. The disabled parking spaces have a 
suitable hatched transfer zone located either side and to the rear of each bay. 
In addition, hatching has been added to the rear of the parent and child 
spaces to delineate a safe pedestrian route. 
 

6.39  The parking layout is suitable for the proposed site usage with spaces 
complying with the local standards of 2.4m x 4.8m with in excess of 6m 
drivable surface in front of the spaces to allow for ease of access. 
 

6.40  The submitted drawing has adequately demonstrated that an articulated HGV 
measuring 16.5m in length entering, manoeuvring and d egressing the site 
without coming into conflict with any upright kerb-line structures, trees or 
formal spaces. The Highway Authority is satisfied that the layout minimises 
conflicts between motorists, cyclists and pedestrians. 

 
Travel Plan 

6.41  The NPPF Paragraph 36 states that all significant generators of traffic 
movements should be required to provide a Travel Plan. The Travel Plan 
should be formulated in accordance with the GCC Travel Plan Guidance for 
developers. 
 



 

PT 

6.42 The Department for Transport (DfT) defines a travel plan as “a long term 
management strategy that seeks to deliver sustainable transport objectives 
through positive action”. Such plans could include; car sharing schemes, 
commitment to improving cycle facilities, dedicated bus services or restricted 
parking allocations. A successful Travel Plan should offer users whether they 
are employees, residents or visitors a choice of travel modes from sites or 
premises. 
 

6.43 The submitted Travel Plan for this application aims to reduce the dependence 
upon single occupancy private car travel when accessing the site and in order 
to do so the Travel Plan aspires to; 
 

 Reduce the percentage of staff travelling by single occupancy private 
car to and from the store. 

 Generate an increase in the percentage of staff utilising active modes 
(walking/cycling), public transport and car sharing access to the store. 
 

6.44  In order for the Travel Plan to achieve these aims a number of actions and 
measures will be implemented. The applicant will appoint a Travel Plan 
Coordinator, whose duty it is to oversee the implementation and monitoring of 
the Travel Plan. The Coordinator will be appointed prior to the store trading. 
Staff changing and storage facilities, cycle parking facilities, welcome packs 
and investigation of staff discounts for public transport and notice boards will 
be installed with appropriate sustainable travel information prior to trading 
commencing. 
 

6.45 The Travel Plan will obtain the base survey data shortly after trading begins (3 
months), once obtained the Travel Plan Coordinator will review the Travel 
Plan at the 3rd and 5th years and the associated targets and measured 
adjusted accordingly. The Travel Plan aims to reduce single occupancy 
private car use year on year. A 5 year period is acceptable for this type and 
size of development and the target percentage reductions are suitable in 
accordance with GCC Travel Plan guidance. The Travel Plan can be secured 
by way of planning condition. 

 
Vehicular Trip Generation 

6.46  Although the proposed discount food store will increase in overall size the 
overall retail floor area across the site will be reduced by 301 square metres, 
some increase in vehicular trip generation may be expected. The increase in 
physical store size will see an additional 89 vehicle trips generated during 
trading hours on a Friday and 99 trips during trading hours on a Saturday 
(based on a predicted 5% increase). Both of these days have been recorded 
as the busiest days of the week for vehicles accessing / egressing the site. 
Based on the submitted car parking assessment the maximum utilisation of 
the car park occurs on a Friday between 11.45-12.00 and between 12.15-
12.30 on a Saturday whereby the car park had a maximum occupancy of 36% 
identifying that there is currently significant spare capacity during the peak 
hours. 
 



 

PT 

6.47  The recorded trip generated for the existing store for the Friday and Saturday 
were recorded as 1789 (192 peak) 2-way vehicle trips on the Friday and 1989 
(235 peak) 2-way vehicle trips on Saturday. 
 

6.48  The majority of the trips to the food store would have already been on the 
network in the form of pass-by or diverted trips where motorists whilst already 
utilising the local highway network divert their journey to visit the store, or 
linked trips whereby motorists have accessed nearby destinations and would 
include the visit to the store as a part of their current trip. This results in a 
lower number of trips than what standard applications such as TRICS may 
suggest, which regards all observed trips as “new trips”. Therefore the impact 
of the increase in store size would not be regarded as significant and would 
not result in any detrimental impacts to the local highway network or effect 
capacity. 
 

6.49  The Highway Authority is satisfied that there would not be a significant 
increase in traffic movements, nor would the increase in store size create any 
capacity issues on the adjacent Highway Network and no highway objection is 
raised. 

 
Flood Risk at the Site 

6.50   A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted in support of the application. In 
accordance with the Environment Agency’s Flood Map the site is located 
within Flood Zone 1. 
 

6.51  The Drainage Officer has raised no objection subject to the inclusion of 
conditions. 
 
Ecology 

6.52  The Canal and River Trust and the Environmental Services Manager have 
raised issues relating to the visual and ecological impact of the proposal on 
the adjacent canal specifically in relation to the impact of lighting and the 
requirement for the retention of at the rear of the site. These matters are 
addressed in the recommended conditions. 

 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 The site is located within an established out of town retail area on previously 

developed land and comprises a sustainable development. 
 
7.5  It is considered that subject to compliance with conditions, the proposed use, 

design, scale and siting of the development would not have any significant 
impact on established retail centres, the residential amenities currently 
enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring properties, highway safety, the 
visual amenity of the area, flooding and archaeology. The development is 
therefore considered to be in accordance with the principles outlined in the 
NPPF and relevant policies in the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local 
Plan (2002). 

 
 



 

PT 

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER 
 

That planning permission is granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

Condition 1 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
five years from the date of this permission. 

 
Reason 
Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004. 

 
Condition 2 
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved drawing nos. 1231 006 and 007 received by the Local Planning 
Authority on 14th July 2016, 1231 005 Rev C and 1231 008 Rev B received on 
15th September 2016, 2015/94.Rev C received on 1st December 2016 and any 
other conditions attached to this planning permission. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans and in accordance with policies contained within Second 
Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002). 
 
PRE-COMMENCEMENT 
Condition 3 
No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall: 
 

 i.  specify the type and number of vehicles; 
ii.  provide for the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
iii.  provide for the loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
iv.  provide for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development; 
v.  provide for wheel washing facilities; 
vi.  specify the intended hours of construction operations; 
vii.  measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
 
Reason 
To ensure that appropriate measures are in place prior to the commencement 
of development to reduce the potential impact on the public highway and 
accommodate the efficient delivery of goods and supplies in accordance 
paragraph 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework and to safeguard 
residential amenity and prevent pollution in accordance with policies TR.31 
and BE.21 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan. 

 
 



 

PT 

Condition 4 
No development shall commence until a detailed scheme showing the 
complete scope and arrangement of the foundation design and ground works 
of the proposed development (including drains and services) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall only take place in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason 
This information is required prior to commencement as site may contain 
significant heritage assets. The Council requires that disturbance or damage 
by foundations and related works is minimised, and that archaeological 
remains are, where appropriate, preserved in situ. This accords with Policy 
BE.31 and BE.36 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002) 
and paragraph 141 of the NPPF 
 
Condition 5 
No development shall commence on site until a detailed design for the 
surface water drainage strategy has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. In particular, the surface water 
drainage strategy will be required to meet the water quality objectives as set 
out in CIRIA C753. The approved scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details before the development is first brought 
into use.  

 
Reason 
To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage 
and thereby preventing the risk of flooding, and also to meet water quality 
objectives. It is important that these details are agreed prior to the 
commencement of development as any works on site could have implications 
for drainage and water quality in the locality. 
 
Condition 6 
Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other 
than that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of 
remediation must not commence until parts A to D have been complied with. If 
unexpected contamination is found after development has begun, 
development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the 
unexpected contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing until part D has been complied with in relation to that 
contamination.  
 
A. Site Characterisation  
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided 
with the planning application, must be completed in accordance with a 
scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, 
whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The 
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons 
and a written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is 



 

PT 

subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of 
the findings must include:  
 
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;  
 
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

 human health,  

 property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, 
pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,  

 adjoining land,  

 groundwaters and surface waters,  

 ecological systems,  

 archaeological sites and ancient monuments;  
 
(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).  
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, 
CLR 11' 
 
B. Submission of Remediation Scheme  
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 
intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and 
other property and the natural and historical environment must be prepared, 
and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management 
procedures. The scheme must accord with the provisions of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land 
after remediation.  
 
C.  Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme  
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its 
terms prior to the commencement of development other than that required to 
carry out remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks 
written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report (referred to elsewhere as a validation report) that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be 
produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority.  

 
D. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination  
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in 
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of part 
A, and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be 



 

PT 

prepared in accordance with the requirements of part B, which is subject to 
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with part C.  
 
E.  Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance  
A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term 
effectiveness of the proposed remediation, and the provision of reports on the 
same must be prepared, both of which are subject to the approval in writing of 
the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the 
remediation objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the monitoring and maintenance carried out must be 
produced, and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.  
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, 
CLR 11'. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that appropriate measures are in place prior to the commencement 
of any works to ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users 
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 
neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy FRP.15 of 
the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002). 
 
Condition 7 
Prior to the commencement of demolition or construction works, a scheme for 
the management of dust from the construction process shall be submitted to 
the local planning authority. The scheme shall also include details on how 
dust emissions will be monitored at the boundary of the site. 
 
Storage areas where there is vehicular movement should either have a 
consolidated surface which should be kept clean and in good repair, or should 
be kept wet. Sweeping, wetting or sealing are all techniques that may be used 
to reduce dust emissions from roads. The technique that should be used 
depends upon the type of road under consideration.  
 
The approved scheme for dust management will be installed and made fully 
operational prior to the commencement of any demolition and construction 
works and thereafter it shall be operated and maintained throughout the 
construction period. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that appropriate measures are in place prior to the commencement 
of any works to ensure that materials are handled and properly discharged in 



 

PT 

the interests of the amenities of residential property in the locality in 
accordance with policy BE.21 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local 
Plan (2002). 
 
Condition 8 
Notwithstanding the submitted drawings, no development shall take place 
until there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type 
of all boundary treatments including precise details of the fencing to be 
erected adjacent to the Gloucester and Sharpness Canal.  The boundary 
treatment shall be completed in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason 
It is important that these details are provided prior to the commencement of 
development to ensure that adequate protection is provided to minimise the  
visual and ecological impact of the proposal on the Gloucester and Sharpness 
Canal in accordance with Policy SD10 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and 
Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Submission Version November 2014 and 
Policies BE.5 and FRP.9 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan 
(2002) of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002). 

 
DURING CONSTRUCTION 
Condition 9 
During the construction and demolition phase (including ground works) no 
machinery shall be operated, no process shall be carried out and no deliveries 
taken at or despatched from the site outside the following times: Monday-
Friday 08.00hrs - 18.00hrs, Saturday 08.00 hrs - 13.00hrs nor at any time on 
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 
 
Reason  
To protect the amenity of local residents in accordance with policy BE.21 of 
the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002). 
 
Condition 10 
No development or demolition below slab level shall take place within the 
application site until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted 
by the applicant and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason  
To make provision for a programme of archaeological mitigation, so as to 
record and advance understanding of any heritage assets which will be lost, in 
accordance with paragraph 141 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
and Policies BE.36, BE.37 & BE.38 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester 
Local Plan (2002). 
 
 



 

PT 

Condition 11 
The landscaping scheme, as shown on the approved plan (drawing number 
2015/94. Rev C), shall be carried out concurrently with the development 
hereby permitted and shall be completed no later than the first planting 
season following the completion of the development.  The planting shall be 
maintained for a period of 5 years.  During this time any trees, shrubs or other 
plants which are removed, die, or are seriously retarded shall be replaced 
during the next planting season with others of similar size and species unless 
the local planning authority gives written consent to any variation.  If any 
plants fail more than once they shall continue to be replaced on an annual 
basis until the end of the 5 year maintenance period. 
 
Reason 
To ensure a satisfactory and well planned development and to preserve and 
enhance the quality of the environment in accordance with policies BE4 and 
BE.12 of the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002). 

 
PRE-OCCUPATION 

Condition 12 
The building shall not be occupied until details for a form of historic 
interpretation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This will take the form of wall or lectern mounted panel(s) 
outlining the history of the site and shall be erected before the buildings are 
occupied. 
 
Reason 
To make provision for the public appreciation of the heritage of the area, in 
accordance with paragraph 141 of the NPPF. 

 
Condition 13 
None of the units hereby approved shall be occupied until a scheme for the 
maintenance of all SuDS/attenuation features and associated pipework has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall include a programme for implementation. The approved 
SuDS maintenance scheme shall be carried out in full in accordance with the 
approved details. 

 
Reason  
To ensure the continued operation and maintenance of drainage features 
serving the site and avoid the increase of flood risk to the site and elsewhere. 
 
Condition 14 
Notwithstanding the details submitted the development hereby permitted shall 
not be occupied until details of a lighting scheme to illuminate the external 
areas of the application site have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the lighting fixtures, 
their location on the site/on the buildings, and the extent of illumination.  The 
scheme is also to include details on how the impact of how floodlights and 
external lighting will be minimised. The approved lighting scheme shall be 
implemented prior to the commencement of the use of the development and 



 

PT 

maintained for the duration of the use of the site, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
In the interests of crime prevention and to ensure that the lighting adjacent to 
the canal is designed to minimise the problems of glare and the resultant 
impact on bats and wildlife using the canal for foraging in accordance with 
Policy SD10 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 
Strategy Submission Version November 2014 and Policies BE.5 and FRP.9 of 
the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002). 

 
Condition 15 
No use hereby permitted shall be occupied until a tactile flush or dropped kerb 
crossing from the extended wrap around footway into the site to the ‘lobby 
entrance area’ fronting the retail unit entrance illustrated on submitted plan 
drawing 1231 005 Rev C 'pedestrian route' has been provided. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that safe and suitable pedestrian access for all users to create a 
safe and secure layout which minimises conflicts between traffic and cyclists 
or pedestrians and considers the needs of people with disabilities in 
accordance with paragraph 35 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 Condition 16 
The building hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the vehicular parking 
and turning and loading/unloading facilities have been provided in accordance 
with the submitted plan drawing 1231 005 Rev C, and those facilities shall be 
maintained available for those purposes thereafter. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that a safe, suitable and secure means of access for all people that 
minimises the conflict between traffic and cyclists and pedestrians is provided 
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
Condition 17 
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the cycle 
storage facilities have been made available for use in accordance with the 
submitted plan drawing 1231 005 Rev C (for a minimum of 10 cycles) and 
those facilities shall be maintained for the duration of the development. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that adequate cycle parking is provided, to promote cycle use and 
to ensure that the opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been 
taken up in accordance with paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
Condition 18 
No building shall be occupied until measures to discourage seagulls from 
nesting and roosting on the buildings hereby approved have been 



 

PT 

implemented in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason  
In the interests of the appearance of the development and to avoid nuisance 
caused by nesting and roosting seagulls, in accordance with Policy SD5 of the 
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy Submission 
Version November 2014, Paragraphs 17 and 58 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy BE.10 of the City of Gloucester Second Deposit 
Local Plan 2002. 
 
GENERAL 
Condition 19 
The approved Travel Plan shall be implemented in accordance with the 
details and timetable therein, and shall be continued thereafter, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason  
To ensure that the opportunities for sustainable transport modes are taken up 
in accordance with paragraphs 32 and 36 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
Condition 20 
The gross external floorspace of the approved building shall not exceed 2,583 
square metres and the net sales floorspace as defined by the National Retail 
Planning Forum* shall not exceed 1,424 square metres. No less than 80% of 
the net sales floorspace shall be used for convenience goods sales. 
  
Reason 
To define the terms of this permission and in order to protect the vitality and 
viability of existing centres and to ensure the store retains its status as a 
‘limited product line deep discount retail food-store’ and in accordance with 
Policy S.4a of the Second Stage Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan 
(2002).   
 
*The area within the walls of the shop or store to which the public has access 
or from which sales are made, including display areas, fitting rooms, 
checkouts, the area in front of checkouts, serving counters and the area 
behind used by serving staff, areas occupied by retail concessionaires, 
customer services areas, and internal lobbies in which goods are displayed; 
but not including cafes and customer toilets 
 
Condition 21 
The development hereby approved shall only be used as a Class A1 retail 
foodstore. This shall be restricted to 'limited product line deep discount 
retailing', and shall be used for no other purpose falling within Class A1 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987. 'Limited product line 
deep discount retailing' shall be taken to mean the sale of no more than 2,000 
individual product lines. No increase in the number of product lines shall be 
permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 



 

PT 

 
Reason  
To define the terms of this permission and in order to protect the vitality and 
viability of existing centres and to ensure the store retains its status as a deep 
discount retail food-store and in accordance with Policy S.4a of the Second 
Stage Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002).   

 
Notes 
1. The applicant is advised to contact Phil J White, Third Party Works 

Engineer on 07710 175496 in order to ensure that any necessary 
licenses are in place and the work complies with the Canal and River 
Trust’s ‘Code of Practice for Works Adjacent to the Waterway’. 

2. All crushers and screens that may be used on site shall be accompanied 
by a Permit to Operate issued under the Environmental Permitting 
Regulations 2010. 

3. Severn Trent Water Ltd advises that there may be a public sewer 
located within the application site and encourage the applicant to 
investigate this. Please note that public sewers have statutory protection 
and may not be built close to, directly over or be diverted without 
consent. If there are sewers which will come into close proximity of the 
works, the applicant is advised to contact Severn Trent Water to discuss 
the proposals and we will seek to assist with obtaining a solution which 
protects both the public sewer and the building.  

4. Please note, when submitting a Building Regulations application, the 
building control officer is required to check the sewer maps supplied by 
Severn Trent and advise them of any proposals located over or within 3 
meters of a public sewer. In many cases under the provisions of Building 
Regulations 2000 Part H4, Severn Trent can direct the building control 
officer to refuse building regulations approval.  

 
 

 Statement of Positive and Proactive Engagement 
 In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority 
has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner in seeking 
solutions to secure sustainable development which will improve the economic, 
social and environmental wellbeing of the area. In particular, the Local 
Planning Authority has negotiated issues relating to retail policy, highway 
safety and design. 
 
 

Decision:   ....................................................................................................................  
 
Notes:   .........................................................................................................................  
 
 .....................................................................................................................................  
 
 .....................................................................................................................................  
 
Person to contact: Caroline Townley 
 (Tel: 396780.) 



© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 10019169 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 

proceedings. 

 

16/00840/FUL 
 

Lidl Supermarket Canada Wharf  
Bristol Road 
Gloucester 
GL1 5TE  
 
Planning Committee 10.01.2017 
   

 

 
 

 



  

 
 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF GLOUCESTER 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

ON 

 

10th January 2017 

 

 

 

DELEGATED DECISIONS 

1ST – 30th November 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Services Group Manager, 

Herbert Warehouse,The Docks, Gloucester 
 



 Abbeydale 
 16/01096/FUL RHIAM 
 31 Palmer Avenue Gloucester GL4 5BH  

 Single storey side / rear extension. 
 G3Y 15/11/2016 

 16/01188/FUL AEROR 
 8 Farmington Close Gloucester GL4 4XA 

 Two Storey Rear and Side Extension 

 REF 23/11/2016 

 16/01346/NMA AEROR 
 8 Rumsey Close Gloucester GL4 5JY  

 Erection of a wooden boundary fence. 

 WDN 22/11/2016 

 Abbeymead 
 16/01354/PDE RHIAM 
 19 Bay Tree Road Gloucester GL4 5WD  

 Single storey rear extension. 3 metres in depth, 2.2 metres to the eaves and  
 2.8 metres to the highest point of the extension. 

 NPW 09/11/2016 

 Barnwood 
 16/00782/FUL ADAMS 
 191 Barnwood Road Gloucester GL4 3HN 

 Dropped kerb on a classified road 

 REFUSE 30/11/2016 



 16/01007/PDE BOBR 
 32 Lilliesfield Avenue Gloucester GL3 3AQ  

 Single storey extension to rear  (depth: 5 metres from rear elevation of  
 original dwellinghouse, maximum height: 3 metres, height to eaves: 2.75  

 ENOBJ 17/11/2016 

 16/01108/FUL RHIAM 
 51 Brookfield Road Gloucester GL3 3HF 

 Proposed single storey side and rear extension. 

 G3Y 15/11/2016 

 16/01114/FUL RHIAM 
 45 Newstead Road Gloucester GL4 3TQ  

 Single storey side extension. 
 G3Y 15/11/2016 

 16/01142/FUL AEROR 
 37 Lilliesfield Avenue Gloucester GL3 3AQ 

 Loft conversion with rear dormer and hip to gable conversion, along with  
 Velux roof lights and a window to the side (south east) roof gable. 

 G3Y 11/11/2016 

 16/01146/COU FEH 
 Beechwood Funeral Services 7A Highfield Place Gloucester GL4 4PB  

 Change of use of first floor to residential (2 bedroom flat) 

 G3Y 10/11/2016 

 16/01161/FUL RHIAM 
 13 Lilliesfield Avenue Gloucester GL3 3AQ  

 Single storey front extension. 
 G3Y 22/11/2016 



 16/01196/TCM AEROR 
 Communication Station  Barnett Way Gloucester   

 Prior approval for siting and appearance of a 15 m telecom pole and shroud,  
 together with ancillary equipment cabinet to replace exiting equipment. 

 GATCMZ 14/11/2016 

 16/01316/CONDIT CJR 
 Land At Barnwood Link Road Gloucester   

 Discharge of condition 8 (Reptile Mitigation Strategy) for planning  
 permission ref. 14/01035/OUT. 

 ALDIS 15/11/2016 

 16/01348/TPO JJH 
 EDF Energy Ltd 7 Barnett Way Gloucester GL4 3RS  

 T49 (cypress) - Remove 

 TPDECS 29/11/2016 

 Barton & Tredworth  
 15/00333/FUL JONSU 
 219 Barton Street Gloucester GL1 4HY  

 Installation of new shopfront 

 NDT 21/11/2016 

 16/00435/FUL CJR 
 Asda Supermarket Bruton Way Gloucester GL1 1DS  

 Change of use of part of store car park to an automated petrol filling station  
 and associated infrastructure. 

 G3Y 11/11/2016 



 16/00519/ADV CJR 
 Asda Supermarket Bruton Way Gloucester GL1 1DS  

 2 no. Illuminated 'ASDA' Canopy fascia signs, 2 no. '24 Hours' Canopy fascia  
 signs, 2 no. 'Welcome / No Entry disc signs, 2 no. 'Give Way / No Entry disc  
 signs, 2 no. Totem signs, 2 no. Banner Frame Signs. 

 GFY 14/11/2016 

 16/01216/FUL AEROR 
 56 Massey Road Gloucester GL1 4LQ 

 Two storey rear extension, single storey rear and side extesnion and shed. 

 G3Y 22/11/2016 

 16/01224/FUL AEROR 
 64 Regent Street Gloucester GL1 4XG 

 Single storey rear and side extension. 
 G3Y 14/11/2016 

 Coney Hill 
 16/00718/CONDIT CJR 
 Lidl Supermarket  Eastern Avenue Gloucester GL4 4LP 

 Discharge of condition 5 (Drainage) on planning permission ref. 16/00013/FUL. 
 ALDIS 15/11/2016 

 16/00731/CONDIT CJR 
 Lidl Supermarket  Eastern Avenue Gloucester GL4 4LP 

 Discharge of Condition 8 (boundary treatments) on planning permission ref:  
 16/00013/ful 

 ALDIS 15/11/2016 

 16/01113/FUL RHIAM 
 5 Goldsborough Close Gloucester GL4 4ST  

 Single storey rear/ side extension. 

 G3Y 25/11/2016 



 16/01118/FUL RHIAM 
 121 Painswick Road Gloucester GL4 4PY  

 Erection of freestanding conservatory to rear. 

 G3Y 30/11/2016 

 Elmbridge 
 16/01001/ADV FEH 
 51 Barnwood Road Gloucester GL2 0SE  

 Erection of two non illuminated wall mounted signs and one non  
 illuminated fence mounted sign 

 GFY 18/11/2016 

 16/01173/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Railway Triangle Site Metz Way Gloucester   

 Application for partial discharge of Condition No. 29 (land remediation) for  
 Phase 2 on planning permission ref: 14/00300/FUL 

 WDN 03/11/2016 

 16/01282/FUL RHIAM 
 29 Orchard Road Gloucester GL2 0HX 

 Proposed single storey rear extension. 

 G3Y 30/11/2016 

 16/01341/NMA AEROR 
 18 Norman Ball Way Gloucester GL1 3QL  

  Non material amendment to planning permission ref 16/00338/FUL, for  
 changes to the fenestration. 

 NOS96 22/11/2016 

 Grange 
 16/01388/PREAPP DTJ 
 8 Bodiam Avenue Gloucester GL4 0TJ  

 Creation of dropped kerb. 
 14/11/2016 

  



Hucclecote 
 16/00707/FUL FEH 
 1 Deer Park Road Gloucester GL3 3NA  

 Erection of a detached 2 storey dwelling together with parking spaces  
 accessed from Colwell Avenue 

 G3Y 11/11/2016 

 16/01117/FUL RHIAM 
 4 Langton Close Gloucester GL3 3AZ 

 Single storey side/rear extension. 

 G3Y 21/11/2016 

 16/01159/FUL RHIAM 
 28 Conway Road Gloucester GL3 3PN 

 Proposed erection of a conservatory to the rear of the dwelling. 

 G3Y 22/11/2016 

 16/01251/FUL RHIAM 
 87 Chosen Way Gloucester GL3 3BX  

 Single Storey Side Extension 

 G3Y 25/11/2016 

 16/01357/TCM PEGAN 
 Communication Station 3G ROOFTOP SITE GL0025 1 Hucclecote Road  

 Replacement of existing 3 antennas 

 NOB 03/11/2016 

 Kingsholm & Wotton 
 15/01580/FUL CARLH 
 78 Henry Road Gloucester GL1 3DY  

 Erection of new dwelling adjacent to number 78 Henry Road 

 RET 14/11/2016 



 16/00868/FUL ADAMS 
 Gloucester Rugby Football Club  Kingsholm Road Gloucester GL1 3AX 

 Change of use of land from car sales (sui generis) to stadium use (Class D2),  
 demolition of existing brickwork wall between sites & erection of new  
 boundary fence, relocation of existing turnstiles and cabins, and installation  

 G3Y 29/11/2016 

 16/01148/FUL BOBR 
 Former 16 Newland Street Gloucester GL1 3PA  

 Retention of building for use as 4 no. one bedroom flats (Retrospective  

 G3Y 30/11/2016 

 16/01190/COU BOBR 
 Pullman Place Great Western Road Gloucester GL1 3EA  

 Change of use of ground floor from a 'call centre office' to outpatient suite  
 Class D1 and associated alterations. 

 G3Y 22/11/2016 

 16/01213/TRECON JJH 
 Rear Of 90 Henry Road Gloucester GL1 3DX  

 Six sycamore trees on drive to garages at rear of 90 Henry Road. Fell all trees. 

 TCNOB 09/11/2016 

 16/01231/TRECON JJH 
 17 Denmark Road Gloucester GL1 3HZ  

 T1 _ T2 (Horse Chestnut) - Fell. 
 TCNOB 02/11/2016 

 16/01238/TRECON JJH 
 Hillfield Coach House 1A Denmark Road Gloucester GL1 3HW  

 T1. Maple: Crown lift to 4m by removing lowest branches. 

 TCNOB 02/11/2016 

 16/01300/FUL RHIAM 
 11 Pillowell Drive Gloucester GL1 3NA 

 Single storey side/ rear extension 

 G3Y 30/11/2016 



 16/01317/FUL AEROR 
 2 Coltman Close Gloucester GL1 3QJ 

 Single storey rear 'home office' to replace existing, for ancillary use for the  
 first floor flat. 

 RET 09/11/2016 

 Kingsway 
 16/01271/FUL RHIAM 
 83 Marham Drive Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2DL 

 Erection of a conservatory to the rear of the property. 

 G3Y 30/11/2016 

 16/01515/TCM PEGAN 
 Opposite 123 Woodvale Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2BU  

 Installation of ground cabinet 

 NOB 30/11/2016 

 Longlevens 
 15/00548/FUL JONSU 
 151 Estcourt Road Gloucester GL1 3LW  

 Single storey side extension 

 RET 30/11/2016 

 16/01094/FUL RHIAM 
 70 Simon Road Gloucester GL2 0TP  

 Single storey extension to front elevation. 

 G3Y 22/11/2016 

 16/01095/FUL RHIAM 
 68 Wellsprings Road Gloucester GL2 0NJ  

 Single storey rear extension 
 G3Y 15/11/2016 

 16/01115/FUL RHIAM 
 11A Oxstalls Lane Gloucester GL2 9HN 

 Proposed two storey rear extension. 

 G3Y 30/11/2016 



 16/01152/FUL AEROR 
 6 Rydal Road Gloucester GL2 0NT 

 New balcony door at first floor level and juliet balcony. (retrospective) 

 G3Y 11/11/2016 

 16/01180/FUL RHIAM 
 89 Oxstalls Way Gloucester GL2 9JU 

 Proposed single storey extension at the rear of the property 
 G3Y 21/11/2016 

 16/01185/FUL RHIAM 
 68 Gambier Parry Gardens Gloucester GL2 9RE  

 Single Storey Rear Extension 

 G3Y 25/11/2016 

 16/01208/FUL RHIAM 
 14 Durand Close Gloucester GL2 0TY 

 Demolition of existing conservatory. Construction of a single storey rear  
 extension and a porch on the front elevation. 

 G3Y 25/11/2016 

 16/01246/FUL AEROR 
 70 Windermere Road Gloucester GL2 0LZ  

 Single storey rear and side extension. 

 G3Y 25/11/2016 

 Matson & Robinswood 
 16/01249/FUL RHIAM 
 1 Osier Close Gloucester GL4 6SP  

 Single Storey Rear Extension 

 G3Y 25/11/2016 

 16/01252/LAW RHIAM 
 12 Finlay Road Gloucester GL4 6TP  

 Single Storey Rear Extension 
 LAW 21/11/2016 



 16/01253/LAW RHIAM 
 34 Corncroft Lane Gloucester GL4 6XU 

 Single storey rear extension to dwelling 
 LAW 21/11/2016 

 Moreland 
 16/01020/COU BOBR 
 Unit 5  151 Bristol Road Gloucester GL1 5SY 

 Change of use to B8 storage and distribution (plasterboard and associated  
 goods) and installation of roller shutter door. 

 GP 30/11/2016 

 16/01024/OUT FEH 
 72A Tredworth Road Gloucester GL1 4QR  

 Erection of detached 2 storey 3 bedroom dwelling to rear of 70 - 72A  
 Tredworth Road with off street parking and construction of three additional  

 WDN 24/11/2016 

 16/01098/FUL AEROR 
 41 Wilton Road Gloucester GL1 5NJ  

 Single storey rear extension with single storey side extension and front  

 G3Y 28/11/2016 

 16/01137/FUL AEROR 
 199 Bristol Road Gloucester GL1 5TQ 

 To drop kerb for access to planned driveway for two vehicles. 
 REF 25/11/2016 

 16/01141/FUL RHIAM 
 5 Bloomfield Road Gloucester GL1 5BL 

 Single storey side / rear extension. 

 G3Y 21/11/2016 

 16/01164/FUL RHIAM 
 20 Granville Street Gloucester GL1 5HL 

 Single storey rear extension 
 G3Y 22/11/2016 



 16/01215/FUL FEH 
 36 Park End Road Gloucester GL1 5AL 

 Retrospective permission for a one bedroom flat in the rear reception room,  
 conservatory and basement 

 GP 14/11/2016 

 16/01221/FUL RHIAM 
 127 Tuffley Avenue Gloucester GL1 5NP 

 Single storey rear extension. 

 G3Y 25/11/2016 

 Podsmead 
 16/01043/FUL AEROR 
 Crypt School Podsmead Road Gloucester GL2 6AE  

 Existing sports hall to get new wind catchers installed in the roof and  
 electrical kiosk to side of sports hall. 

 G3Y 15/11/2016 

 Quedgeley Fieldcourt 
 15/00457/LAW RHIAM 
 29 Coltishall Close Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4RN  

 Proposed single storey side extension 

 LAW 30/11/2016 

 16/01018/CONDIT CJR 
 Aquarius Centre Edison Close Quedgeley Gloucester   

 Discharge of Conditions 10(c) - Remediation/Validateion Report and 10 (e) -  
 Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance for planning permission  

 ALDIS 15/11/2016 



 16/01153/FUL AEROR 
 160 Fieldcourt Gardens Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4TY 

 Two storey side extesnion. 

 G3Y 11/11/2016 

 16/01225/CONDIT CJR 
 Units L - Q The Aquarius Centre Edison Close Quedgeley Gloucester   

 Discharge of conditions 15 C (Implementation of Approved Remediation  
 Scheme) and 15 E (Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance) of planning  
 permission ref. 15/01022/FUL. 
Discharge of condition 6 C (Remediation -  
 Validation Report) for planning permission 15/ 

 ALDIS 14/11/2016 

 16/01256/DCC FEH 
 Waterwells Primary Acadamy Boulmer Avenue Kingsway Quedgeley  

 Erection of 182sqm detached, timber framed, flat roofed, building for D1  
 educational use on school site. 

 OBS 08/11/2016 

 16/01302/LAW AEROR 
 Stanley Dene Naas Lane Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2SD  

 Garage conversion 

 LAW 14/11/2016 

 Quedgeley Severnvale 
 16/01245/FUL AEROR 
 1 Pendock Close Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4GL  

 Single Storey Front and Rear Extensions 
 G3Y 25/11/2016 

 16/01285/FUL RHIAM 
 64 The Willows Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4XG 

 Demolition of timber outbuilding and construction of a single storey side  

 G3Y 30/11/2016 



 16/01292/LAW AEROR 
 3 Griffon Close Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4NQ 

 Installation of rear dormer. 

 LAW 14/11/2016 

 Tuffley 
 14/01338/CONDIT AEROR 
 Robinswood Hill Farm Reservoir Road Gloucester GL4 6SX  

 Discharge of condition nos. 3 (landscape scheme), 6 (Construction Method  
 Statement), 7 (Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation), 8 (samples of 
  external materials) and 9 (details of surfacing treatments) of planning  
 application reference number 13/ 

 ALDIS 25/11/2016 

 16/00935/FUL FEH 
 3 Tuffley Lane Gloucester GL4 0DT 

 Single and two storey extensions at front side and rear to provide annex for  
 elderly relatives at ground floor level and two additional bedrooms at first  

 G3Y 28/11/2016 

 Westgate 
 15/00343/DCC JONSU 
 Netheridge Sewage Treatment Works Netheridge Close Gloucester GL2 5LE  

 Construction of a dewatering sludge motor control kiosk 
 NDT 10/11/2016 

 15/00578/LAW AEROR 
 35 The Forge Gloucester GL2 5GH  

 Single storey rear extension 

 LAW 25/11/2016 



 16/00562/FUL RONM 
 23 Spa Road Gloucester GL1 1UY  

 Demolition of garage at rear and erection of new dwelling 

 WDN 28/11/2016 

 16/00664/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Land At Bakers Quay Llanthony Wharf And Monkmeadow Bounded By  

 Application for partial discharge of Condition 43 of planning permission ref.  
 14/00709/FUL (updated Remediation Strategy pursuant to earlier partial  
 approval; with regard to further works in Parcels 2 and 3) 

 PADIS 15/11/2016 

 16/00792/FUL BOBR 
 182 Southgate Street Gloucester GL1 2EZ 

 New bedrooms for approved ground floor flat in basement. Amend layout of  
 rear annexe and 3rd floor door from consent 01/00500/LBC. Move fitted  

 G3Y 18/11/2016 

 16/00793/LBC BOBR 
 182 Southgate Street Gloucester GL1 2EZ 

 New bedrooms for approved ground floor flat in basement. Amend layout of  
 rear annexe and 3rd floor door from consent 01/00500/LBC. Move fitted  

 GLB 18/11/2016 

 16/00835/CONDIT CJR 
 Land At The Junction Of Trier Way And 161 Southgate Street Gloucester   

 Discharge of Condition No. 28 (Travel Plan) on planning permission ref:  
 ALDIS 28/11/2016 

 16/00955/FUL BOBR 
 31 Westgate Street Gloucester GL1 2NW 

 Conversion of existing commercial unit into shop (Use Class A1) and shared  
 flat (Use Class C4). 

 G3Y 18/11/2016 



 16/00956/LBC BOBR 
 31 Westgate Street Gloucester GL1 2NW 

 Conversion of existing commercial unit into shop (Use Class A1) and shared  
 flat (Use Class C4). 

 GLB 18/11/2016 

 16/00969/JPA ADAMS 
 Spread Eagle Court 110 Northgate Street Gloucester   

 Change of use of first, second and third floors from Offices (B1) to residential  
 (C3) to provide 9 apartments. 

 AAPRZ 22/11/2016 

 16/00988/COU FEH 
 155 Southgate Street Gloucester GL1 1XE  

 Change of use from A1 (shop) to C3 dwelling house, including inserting new  
 stud walls and the forming of a new door, relocating of an existing door and  
 inserting a new window and changes to roof of single storey rear extension 

 G3Y 28/11/2016 

 16/00989/LBC FEH 
 155 Southgate Street Gloucester GL1 1XE  

 Change of use from A1 (shop) to C3 dwelling house, including inserting new  
 stud walls and the forming of a new door, relocating of an existing door and  
 inserting a new window and changes to roof of single storey rear extension 

 GLB 28/11/2016 

 16/01023/FUL BOBR 
 4 St Aldate Street Gloucester GL1 1RP 

 Change of use of 1st and 2nd floors to form a 6 bed HMO unit for student  
 accommodation (Class C4). 

 G3Y 24/11/2016 

 16/01041/FUL FEH 
 Fusion  1 Station Road Gloucester GL1 1EQ 

 Change of use from a public house and residential accommodation (A4/C3) to 
  a children's nursery (D1 use) to include external alterations 

 G3Y 21/11/2016 



 16/01171/ADV FEH 
 Zest Bar  103 Eastgate Street Gloucester GL1 1PY 

 Erection of internally illuminated fascia sign  

 

 GFY 16/11/2016 

 16/01181/FUL BOBR 
 Fitzalan House  Park Road Gloucester GL1 1LZ 

 Alterations to external elevations (pursuant to prior approval  
 G3Y 23/11/2016 

 16/01204/FUL RHIAM 
 54 Hempsted Lane Gloucester GL2 5JN 

 Single storey rear extension 

 G3Y 25/11/2016 

 16/01206/FUL AEROR 
 17 Harness Close Gloucester GL2 5GF  

 Single storey rear extension 
 G3Y 14/11/2016 

 16/01212/FUL ADAMS 
 Orchard Square The Docks Gloucester   

 Temporary use of Orchard Square for the siting of an Ice Rink, Christmas  
 Market and associated development.  Proposal includes the erection of  
 temporary buildings and plant.  Permission sought for the Christmas and New 
  Year periods 2016/17, 2017/18 and 20 

 G3Y 28/11/2016 

 16/01362/CONDIT FEH 
 Gloucester Library  Brunswick Road Gloucester GL1 1HT 

 Discharge of Condition 3 (details of the roof and roof light) 
 ALDIS 14/11/2016 



  

DECISION DESCRIPTIONS ABBREVIATIONS 
AAPRZ: Prior Approval Approved 
ALDIS: All Discharged 
AR: Approval of reserved matters 
C3C: Conservation Area Consent for a period of 3 years 
CAC: Conservation Area Consent 
ECREF: PDE Refused - Commenced 
ENOBJ: No Objections 
ENPDEZ: PDE Decision – No objections 
EOBJ: PDE Decision - Objection 
G3L: Grant Listed Building Consent for a period of 3 Years 
G3Y: Grant Consent for a period of 3 Years 
GA: Grant Approval 
GATCMZ: Grant approval for telecommunications mast 
GFY: Grant Consent for a period of Five Years 
GLB: Grant Listed Building Consent 
GLBGOS: Grant Listed Building Consent subject to Government Office of South 

West clearance 
GOP: Grant Outline Permission 
GOSG: Government Office of South West Granted 
GP: Grant Permission 
GSC: Grant Subject to Conditions 
GTY: Grant Consent for a period of Two Years 
GYO: Grant Consent for a period of One Year 
LAW: Certificate of Law permitted 
NOB: No objections 
NOS96 No objection to a Section 96 application 
NPW: Not proceeded with 
OBJ: Objections to County Council 
OBS: Observations to County Council 
PADIS Part Discharged 
PER: Permission for demolition 
RAD: Refuse advert consent 
REF: Refuse 
REFLBC: Refuse Listed Building Consent 
REFREA: Refuse 
REFUSE: Refuse 
RET: Returned 
ROS96: Raise objections to a Section 96 application 
RPA: Refuse Prior Approval 
SCO: EIA Screening Opinion 
SPLIT: Split decision 
TCNOB: Tree Conservation Area – No objection 
TELPRI: Telecommunications Prior Approval 
TPDECS: TPO decision notice 
TPREF: TPO refuse 
WDN: Withdrawn 

 


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Lidl Supermarket, Canada Wharf, Bristol Road - 16/00840/FUL
	7 Delegated Decisions

